

Town of Lincoln
Minutes of the Agriculture Commission Meeting
Held on Tuesday 1/12/2021 via Zoom teleconference

Members Present:

Voting: Louise Bergeron (co-chair), Ari Kurtz (co-chair), Lynne Bower, Nancy Bergen
Alternate Voting: Stacy Osur, Corey Nimmer

Members Absent:

Voting: Ellen Raja
Alternate Voting: Karen Seo

NOTE: The Ag Comm has agreed that every member's vote counts all the time, both voting and alternate voting members.

7:30pm -- Meeting commenced

Annual Report

Annual Report for Lincoln Town Meeting is in process by Louise and will be shared with Ari for final editing

Conservation Commission

Lincoln Conservation Commission member Ari Kurtz announced hiring of new director Michele Grzenda, previously employed by town of Weston.

Farm education

There was discussion of co-sponsoring "my coop, your coop" with possibly live or virtual visits of backyards in town with the Lincoln Garden Club. This idea is currently being discussed by the Garden Club and Stacy Osur. Ag Com supported the idea and asked for expanding this to include future visits of gardens, and backyard farm animals.

Publicizing the Lincoln Right to Farm bylaw

Corey Nimmer provided draft article about the Lincoln Right to Farm bylaw and arrange for it to be published in Lincoln Squirrel (online newspaper) and Lincoln Talk (email forum). Commission suggested an addition of rewording last paragraph and to distribute for commission to edit.

Plants toxic to livestock

Karen Seo sent Louise lists of plants that found in New England that are toxic to livestock. Louise Bergeron continues to collect info for lists of local plants that are toxic to farm animals.

Pesticide spraying

Louise Bergeron discussed pesticide spraying in MA and within Lincoln. Lincoln Conservation Commission is also collecting data and may team with Lincoln Land Conservation Trust. Louise Bergeron will reach out again to Buzz Constable of LCC and will circle back to us with report.

Farm Reviews

Ari Kurtz reported that the Lincoln Conservation Commission has begun meetings with town farmers leasing conservation land. Drumlin Farm has leased the Umbrello Fields. Leases are on a 5 year cycle. The Umbrello land has electricity and a well. There is currently 2 years left on that lease and the Conservation Commission is looking into the possibility of a young farmer to do a start-up farm there.

Meeting was adjourned at 8:30pm

Old Action Items

** 11/8/2017 Action item – Karen to check the Food Corps website and see if perhaps they could help with promoting more education about farming in the Lincoln schools. For example, would they be able/willing to help establish and care for a garden in Lincoln's school(s).

** 1-16-2018 Action item -- Lynne to add link on Ag Comm web page for New Entry Farming Project.

** 1-16-2018 Action item – Stacy to investigate whether Ag Comm funds can be used for Mini-grants

** 2-14-2018 Action item – Karen to get information on organizations that provide workshops, resources, etc. to schools to teach about farming.

** 11/13/2018 Action item – Lynne to see if she still has a copy of the film on the history of Lincoln farming (Janet Boynton) and if she does to post it on the Lincoln Ag Comm web page.

** 12/11/2018 Action Item -- Ari to find out the name of the artist and obtain permission to reprint the Lincoln Review's drawings of barns.

** 12/11/2018 Action Item -- Ari to contact Diane Augur (Friends for Tomorrow at Berryfield Farm) re: Ag Comm membership

** 2/12/2019 Action item – Need volunteer to send a message to Lincoln Talk to recruit members. Task would consist of writing and sending a message to Lincoln talk using the AgCom email address and in then following up with responses.

** 2/12/2019 Action item – Stacy to check on whether if we create a pamphlet listing all of the agricultural books, this pamphlet could be made accessible at the library and on the library’s web site.

** 2/12/2019 Action item – Need someone to take the responsibility to write up and distribute the agricultural tip messages at the appropriate dates and follow up on responses.

** 3/12/2019 Action Item -- Margie to ask Andy Payne (developer of the “shopping cart”) for ideas to promote buying local produce and meat

** 3/12/2019 Action Item -- Ari to talk to Jennifer Burney re: promoting buying local produce and meat.

** 3/12/2019 Action Item -- Lynne to talk to Patrice about creating a central link “Buy Local”

** 4/9/2019 Action item – Waiting on Codman to notify Ag Comm on when the memorial bench for Beth Taylor can be delivered.

** 4/9/2019 Action Item -- Lynne to put the list of agricultural books on the Ag Comm web site.

** 5/15/2019 Action Item -- Stacy and Lynne to work on public outreach to gather information on Lincoln barns. This will be done via messages to be sent to Lincoln Talk, Lincoln Journal and the Squirrel.

**7/9/2019 Action Item -- Margie to see if she can get access to information from the 1986 barn tour – try contacting Suze Craig (Westport), Sally Hodges (college student), Peg Marsh (NH)

** 11/12/2019 Action Item – Ari to discuss with Con Comm board possibly requiring participation by those licensing land to participate in Ag Comm meetings and support AgComm efforts/activities.

** 11/12/2019 Action Item – Karen to follow up on a lead for a possible new Ag Comm member.

** 2-11-2020 Action item -- Stacy to distribute farm brochures to Lincoln realtors and Lincoln town clerk for inclusion in the Welcome to Lincoln book

** 2-11-2020 Action item – Karen to continue to participate in the LCG’s Conservation and Environment committee meetings.

** 2-11-2020 Action item -- Lynne to talk with Sara Mattes (President of the Lincoln Historical Society) about having the Historical Society provide sample write ups on the history of 3 barns (300-500 words each).

** 3-10-2020 Action item – Karen and Lynne to think about taking on the role of program chair.

** 4-21-2020 Action item -- Sarah to circulate a draft on the need for the Ag Comm to take a pro-active role in ensuring that Lincoln's land and water use are looked at from the viewpoint of supporting agriculture. All to provide feedback.

** 4-28-2020 Action item – Ari to provide pointers to sources of information re: organic pesticides/herbicides

** 4-28-2020 Action item – Karen to talk with Belinda Gingrich (Garden Club) about whether the Garden Club has any information on backyard produce gardening

** 4-28-2020 Action item -- Ari to talk to Peter Von Merton re: what they did for their commemorative bench(es) – costs, who did the work, etc.

** 4-28-2020 Action item -- Ari to put this topic (what to do with Lincoln's land resources with regard to supporting agriculture) on the agenda for the next meeting.

** 7-14-2020 Action item -- Ari to check with the Food Project on how things are going.

** 7-14-2020 Action item -- Ari to ask all 3 farms to provide the Ag Comm with records of what they deliver to the Food Pantry.

** 7-14-2020 Action item -- All to review latest Ag Comm document on Home Gardening.

** 7-14-2020 Action item -- Lynne to work on fixing problems with access to Ag Comm email.

** 7-14-2020 Action item -- Lynne to re-send Ag Comm members the password and UserID for the Ag Comm email account.

** 7-14-2020 Action item – Louise to talk to Michelle Barnes re: clarification of the message she posted on Lincoln Talk re:water use restrictions confirmation that agriculture as defined by Lincoln's Right to Farm by-law is exempt from these restrictions.

** 7-14-2020 Action item – Stacy to research prices for a bronze plaque for the memorial bench for Beth Taylor

** 7-14-2020 Action item – Lynn has the bench and will deliver it for installation in the Codman Farm flower garden. She'll contact Nancy Fleming to coordinate the delivery.

** 7-14-2020 Action item – Stacy to draft text for plaque for memorial bench for Beth Taylor.

Candidates include:

In loving memory of Beth Taylor who loved gardens

In memory of her love of all things growing

** 7-14-2020 Action item – Lynne to contact Nancy Bergen and the photographer (has received a retainer of \$2K+) to arrange for pictures of Flint farm. It would be nice if there could be pictures from all seasons.

- ** 7-14-2020 Action item – Louise to draft a vision statement for the Lincoln barn book.
- ** 7-14-2020 Action item – Lynne to talk to Sara to get her input and that of the Lincoln Historical Society on the Lincoln barn book.
- ** 7-14-2020 Action item – Nancy to invite Cory Flint to the next zoom meeting of the Ag Comm.
- ** 7-14-2020 Action item – Ari to investigate how to change the mandated composition of the Ag Comm (5 Voting, 3 Alternate voting, 1 non-voting) to all or mostly voting.
- ** 7-14-2020 Action item – Lynne to add a link to The American Chestnut Foundation to the Ag Comm web page
- ** 7-14-2020 Action item – Lynne to add a link to the video “The Chestnut Tree: Bringing Back and American Icon – William Powell” to the Ag Comm web page.
- ** 7-14-2020 Action item – Lynne to ask Mark Meehl for his thoughts on a possible speaker for a fall talk in Lincoln on the American Chestnut restoration efforts.
- ** 8-11-2020 Action item – All to propose knowledgeable presenters who could present on insect control for agriculture as well as adverse effects of mosquito spraying.
- ** 8-11-2020 Action item – All to review “The Sacred Cow” to make sure that the content is in agreement with the AgCom mission.
- ** 8-11-2020 Action item – Lynne will contact Sara about the financial commitment required.
- ** 8-11-2020 Action item – Louise will find out what chemicals is used for EEE and report back
- ** 8-11-2020 Action item – All to send substantiated adverse effects of mosquitoes and tick spraying on agriculture to Louise who will relay the AgCom point of view to LLCT/BOH.
- ** 8-11-2020 Action item – Louise to contact Michelle to inquire about the policy amendment
- ** 9-15-2020 Action item – Sarah to contact Pete Lowey and Diana Rogers about being part of a public round table discussion on restorative agriculture.
- ** 9-15-2020 Action item – Stacy to investigate costs to publish a book on Lincoln barns in order to determine what is feasible and reasonable in terms of number and quality of pictures.
- ** 9-15-2020 Action item – Louise to send link to the rest of the Ag Com for the next meeting of the Task Force on mosquito control.
- ** 9-15-2020 Action item – Louise to draft a letter inviting Cory Nimmer to join the Ag Comm.

** 9-15-2020 Action item – Ari to get in touch with Steve Kanner re: status of providing apples to the Food Pantry.

** 9-15-2020 Action item – Stacy to write a short article about the Ag Comm's funding of local farms to provide food for the Lincoln Food Pantry – a short one for the Lincoln Talk and a longer one for the Chipmunk (formerly Lincoln Review). Write ups should:

- Include other Ag Comm charitable efforts -- Nancy Bergen's corn, Ari's land for Food for Free
- Be posted on the Ag Comm web site
- Publicize Ag Comm's efforts

** 10-13-2020 Action item – Stacy and Sara to form a subcommittee to draft a proposed plan for providing the town with information on land restoration through agriculture. This will be presented at the next Ag Comm meeting.

** 10-13-2020 Action item – Stacy to find out what the Food Pantry plans to do this winter and for the Holidays to see if there might be a need that the local farms could help meet.

** 11-10-2020 Action item – Louise to tell Sara about Margie Brown's availability to speak on use of livestock for agricultural land restoration.

** 11-10-2020 Action item – Ari to tell Sara about a speaker whom he knows, who could talk about food security.

** 11-10-2020 Action item – Karen to report on the history of what efforts have already been made to publicize Lincoln's Right to Farm bylaw.

** 11-10-2020 Action item – Stacy and Nancy to head up a sub-committee to figure out how to better communicate the right to farm bylaw to current and prospective residents, e.g., tax bill enclosure, signs, etc.

** 11-10-2020 Action item – Ari to follow up with Mark Meehl re: transgenic chestnut tree, to keep Louise in the loop, and to report back to Ag Comm.

** 11-10-2020 Action item – Ari to contact Charlotte Trim about possible participation in an event on pruning/restoring fruit trees.

** 11-10-2020 Action item – Karen to talk further to Belinda Gingrich re: how Ag Comm might collaborate with the Lincoln Garden Club on evenst re: pruning/restoring fruit trees and environmentally sound pesticide/herbicide use.

** 11-10-2020 Action item – Louise to have a list of plants toxic to livestock posted on the Ag Comm web page.

** 12-8-2020 Action item – Corey to draft up some background and post Lincoln's Right to Farm bylaw on the Lincoln Squirrel

** 12-8-2020 Action item – Karen to send list of local plants that are toxic to livestock to Louise for posting on Ag Comm web site.

9:00pm -- Meeting adjourned.